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One hundred YCArIS - nearly the entire
history of modern roads and of the automobiles that travel
them. Jacob’s Ladder Trail has seen many changes:
cleared hillsides reverted to mature forests; whole indus-
tries developed to thriving enterprises, only to whither and
die, or move to some other part of the country; farms and
forests turned to subdivisions.

The road, too has changed drastically. A century
ago, the entire road was barely wider than one of its
modern travel lanes. Its course has been straightened and
reshaped, and of course, widened, as greater capacity for
reshaping the terrain through which it passes have made it
possible to push back or cut through steep hillsides.

The challenges remain the same though. A century
ago, engineers were just beginning to understand the vul-
nerability of macadam to heat, frost, traffic and a harsh,
sometimes ledgy, sometimes marshy environment. The
surface of the road that opened in 1910 began to crumble
almost immediately, hastening improvements to paving
compounds and methods. Experimentation and refine-
ment continues today.

An anniversary invites reflection. This anniversary
has me thinking about all the people who have contributed
to the effort to preserve the treasures of the Jacob’s Ladder
Trail region. Ours is a special place — steeped in history
and brimming with its own unique culture. There is bare-
ly an acre that hasn’t seen human habitation or cultivation,
yet it’s one of the wildest areas in southern New England
with thousands of acres of forests and open spaces.

This book is dedicated to the stewards of this special
place, past, present and future. Change is unstoppable,
but it’s also malleable. May we be creative, resource-
ful and tenacious in our efforts to shape the future of our
region, so that in another 100 years, that generation will
still be celebrating its special qualities.

In memory of our friends: Natatie
Bozarth, Newman Marsh, Howard Mason and Robert Op-
penheimer.

SpeCIal thanks to our own “Bard of the Berk-
shires,” Vincent Dowling, master of ceremonies for our
celebration at the summit, September 25, 2010.

Thanks also to the Chester Granite Company for
generously donating our centennial monument stone.

- Steve Hamlin
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Congratulations

on your first 100 years
[from vour friends at

Russell 1st

d lives again. Along the Jacob's Ladder Trail.

Envision

A fresh design

of custom cabinetry

* Maltch your decor with custom stain and paints

& Design it like you want it

® | rgonomic, Efficient work spaces.

= More than cabinetry. Furnish yvour whole house with

custom furniture: Bedroom, Office, Dining & Living.

665 Huntington Rd. (Route 20) Russell, MA 01071

Tel: (413) 862-3276

&Mrﬁfﬁe

WOODCRAFT




Page 3

Towns Along the Trail - Russell

By Ann Merritt

The Town of Russell is nestled at the foothills of the
Berkshires in Hampden county, bordered by Westfield to the
east, Granville to the south, Blandford to the west, Montgomery
to the north, and Huntington to the northwest. Covering
approximately 17.9 square miles, Russell’s bucolic landscape
of rolling hills is mostly forested, with some open fields used
for agriculture. Though only 20 miles from Springfield, and
8 miles from Westfield, two of western Massachusetts’ major T ‘* i :
commercial centers, Russell has maintained its quiet, rural RS Town Hall =
character with a population of slightly over 1700.

The Town of Russell was incorporated in 1792, in response to a petition by the residents of “New
Addition”, a piece of land belonging to Westfield, and valued because of its marble quarry and excellent
building stone. The earliest settlers were located on Glasgow Mountain, now known as Russell Mountain,
where farmers and loggers utilized the heavy growth of timber to supply building materials in fast growing
neighborhoods.

The railroad came to Russell in the late 1830’s, and the center of town moved to the river valley at the
foot of the mountains. Streams flowing into the Westfield River, and the river itself, were harnessed to power
sawmills and gristmills. The town continued to grow with the addition of brick and tile works, a tannery,
charcoal kilns, stores, and taverns.

The abundant water of the Westfield River brought paper manufacturing to Russell. Beginning with
Chapin and Gould in 1858, followed by Salmon Falls and Fairfield in 1872, and the Westfield River Paper
Company in 1902, paper mills were built on the sites of former gristmills, charcoal kilns, and brick and tile
companies. Russell became a bustling hub of paper manufacturing, known as “The Paper Town”.

Three distinct villages developed around the three paper
mills in Russell. The paper companies constructed the villages
i of Woronoco, Crescent Mills, and The Grove in Russell, as
housing for their workers.

The thriving paper mills helped to make Jacob’s Ladder
Trail the most important east-west truck route in Massachusetts
until the opening of the Massachusetts Turnpike in 1957.

Until recently, the mills employed most citizens of Russell.
Today, the only remaining paper manufacturer in Russell is
Texon, on the site of the former Chapin and Gould Co. in
Crescent Mills.

Although Russell was originally self-sufficient, state requirements led to collaboration in several areas.
In 1965, Russell voted to join the Gateway Regional School District, which comprises seven hilltowns.
Russell also partners with other towns in sharing and supporting the Hilltown Community Ambulance, as
well as regional finance and selectboard sub-committees, the Jacob’s Ladder Business Association and the
Gateway Youth Athletic Association.

Russell, once a booming manufacturing community, is now left with three abandoned paper mills,
and most residents work in neighboring towns and cities. With its proximity to Westfield and Springfield
and rural character Russell remains an attractive place to live. Russell’s central village has recently been
designated a National Historic District.




First Congregational Church, UCC

6 Searle Road - Norwich Hill
Huntington 413 667-3935

Sunday service and church school, 100am

Come to onr Ladies Aid Bazaar
Saturday, October 30, 9am -2pm
Handmade Crafts -

Baked Goods - Gift Baskets

Raffles - Lunch & More!

Congratulations Jacob's Ladder Trail
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H UNTINGTON WANCE (ENTRE

Amy May Parks
Owner/Artistic Director
6 Main St., P.O. Box 205
Huntington, MA 01050-0205
For More Information Call
(413) 667-5117

Dance For All Ages

John's Barber Shop

John Penn

Proprietor
since 1964

Trolley Line Gift & Flower Shop

Looking for something unigue?

Main Street )i Styles

SERVICING THE HILLTOWNS IN
ALL YOUR FLORAL NEED&

BEAUTIFUL FRESH CENTERFPIECES
for your special occasion

frm———

ll_l“ll i GIFT BASKETS
L ¥ Flease order early
s | delivery available

AND DON'T FORGET OUR CHRISTMAS ROOM
It's a “Wonderland to behold”

with over 18 decorated trees

Downtown Huntington, Rte. 20 « (413) 667-5526
Open Tues. thru Fri. 8 am to 5 pm

Saturday 8 am to noon

A Full Service Salon for the Whele Family

Hair by Michelle & Laurie
Mails by Kelly Leal
Therapeutic Massage by Mary Cyr

g Maiwn Street
Huntington, MA

Michelle qraton
413-667F-5202

years serving the Hilltowns
Now featuring
Breakfast, Lunch

and Books!

The Bridge Store

3 East Main Street (Rte 112)
Huntington, MA (1050}
413-667-0127
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Towns Along the Trail - Huntington

By Steve Hamlin

Huntington began as part of Plantation No. 9 in June 1762. In
1765, Plantation No. 9 was named Murrayfield. In 1773, Murrayfield
was divided and the eastern portion was incorporated as the town of
Norwich. The town was named for Norwich Connecticut from which
many of the early settlers came.

Present-day Huntington village was called “Falley’s Crossroads”
after the owner of the tavern there. It lay at the intersection of three
towns — Blandford, Chester, and Norwich — and two counties —
Hampden and Hampshire. The jurisdictional quirks presented by the
situation of the village were tolerated until the coming of the railroad
around 1840 inflated both the importance and the political tension of the
village.

The confusion of town and county boundaries that divided the
village had some surprising consequences. A man could commit a
crime and evade prosecution simply by crossing the street. Local
folklore tells of a wedding that was held in the old Williams House that
had to be moved to the kitchen in order for the ceremony to be legal.
The county license of the officiating justice of the peace was only good there — the town line ran through the
building and the kitchen was in a different county.

To ease the difficulties, a complicated land-swap was engineered that exchanged parts of Blandford,
Chester, Russell, Montgomery, and Norwich, resulting in the town boundaries we know today. It was
incorporated in 1855 as the new town of Huntington, named in honor of Charles P. Huntington, the
Northampton attorney who crafted the arrangement.

Huntington is closely associated with the Westfield River. All three branches of the river flow into the
town as discrete entities, combining into the main stem in Huntington. Due to the ready supply of water,
industry began early in Huntington’s history with sawmills, tanneries, and basket-makers.

With the arrival of the railroad and the ready access to more remote markets it made possible,
Huntington’s waterpower was applied to paper and textile manufacturing. Two important mills developed —
the Chester Paper Company on Mill St., and the Little and Stanton Woolen Mill on Russell Road (renamed
Upper Russell Rd. with the relocation of the state highway in the 1930’s). Both of those businesses continued
operation well into the 20™ century, but both are gone now.

In the early days of the twentieth century, Huntington was at the end of two trolley lines. The
Springfield Street Railway extended through Westfield and Russell to the Huntington town common. Its rails
were laid along much of what became the Jacob’s Ladder Trail right of way — stone embankments from the
trolley are visible in many locations along the Trail. Just a few yards away from the end of that trolley line
was the end of the Huckleberry Line which ran over the hills to East Lee. Political differences prevented the
two lines from merging. By the end of the second decade of the century, both trolley lines were defunct.

Today, Huntington is primarily a bedroom community. Retail business continues in both the downtown
area and along the first couple of miles of Rt. 112. Farming has always been an important part of the
community and it continues today, although considerably diminished.

For many years, Huntington has hosted the start of the Westfield River Wildwater Races — at 56 years,
the longest continuously-run canoe race in the country.

While there is but a scant three miles of Jacob’s Ladder Trail in Huntington, the intersection with the
southern terminus of Rt. 112 roughly at the mid-point makes it an important part of the road.
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Experience the charm of Chester Village

O’MELIA ELECTRIC

Three Room Apartment $75.00 a night Commercial & Residential Wiring
Full Kitchen Renovations & Service Upgrades
1 . m ; Well Pumps + Hot Water Heaters
Stay a night or two! 0 S| [ Mosters Lcense Emargency Generators & Accessories

413-354-6463  — Michael O’ Melia PO Box 539
26 Main Street ! 3 Phone: 413-354-6531 Huntington, MA 01050

Chester, MA 01011

Chester Railway Station

As vou travel the first mountain roadway, don’t miss the
first mountain raifway, a short block down Main Street
from Jacob's Ladder Trail Scenic Byway, in Chester, MA.
At the Chester Railway Museum, follow Whistler’s Father
and see how he built the line on horseback, and the
magnificent stone arch railroad bridges he engineered.

sat g;f. g@tmn _Chester On Track, concerts, dinners, or spend the night in a caboose!
.chesterrailwaystation.org or www.keystonearches.org

“As your Hilltown and Berkshlre Represemaiwe
I can help you with the sale of your property, or
help with a purchase of a new property. Stop by
our Hilltown office on Main Street in Chester to
see current listings, and pick up information on
the area—or log-on to our website.”

Andrew Myers )
Associate Partner Af

19 Main Street KE R
“hester,
S m;.LLLIAEMs
R E A L T

www.GatewayHills.com
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Towns Along the Trail - Chester

By John Garvey

The Town of Chester was established as Murrayfield
in 1762, and given its present name when it was
incorporated in 1783. The original center of the town
lies several miles north of the Jacob’s Ladder Trail
Scenic Byway. The rugged upland terrain is suitable for
agriculture, and the early settlers spread their farms along
what is now known as Skyline Trail. Other outlying
sections of Chester that were primarily agricultural were
North Chester, Littleville and Dayville.

Around 1812, a glass factory was built along the West
Branch of the Westfield River and the small community
that formed around the factory became known as Chester
Factory Village. The Western Railroad reached Chester Factory Village in the 1840’s, providing efficient
transportation to Boston and Albany, and sparking a new era of growth in Chester, particularly in the Factory
Village.

The building of the railroad brought skilled stone cutters to Chester to work on George Washington
Whistler’s keystone arch bridges. Some of them stayed on after the railroad was built, to cut the granite that
was quarried in Becket. The stone was transported into the valley on the Chester and Becket railroad, cut in a
shop near the railroad station, then loaded onto freight trains to be carried to its destination.

Chester lies on the fault line formed by the collision of two tectonic plates. The compression of the earth
by the collision resulted in a rich diversity of minerals being concentrated along the line, and particularly in
the area of Chester Factory Village. It’s been said that every mineral on earth can be found there, at least in
trace amounts.

In the mid-nineteenth century, emery was discovered in the
hills around the village. This was the first discovery of emery
- in the United States, a significant find since all previous emery
was imported from the politically volatile countries of Turkey
and Greece. The Chester Emery Company was formed to mine
the emery and large mills were built to process the mineral. The
grindstone industry became an important employer in Chester
and remained so into the 1980’s.

Mica was also mined in Chester into the early-20th century.
' It was milled in town into diverse products such as windshields
for early automobiles and windows for lanterns and stoves. These and other industries made Chester Factory
Village into a bustling center of commerce. The Factory Village became the center of town affairs, as it still
is today. The Jacob’s Ladder Trail Scenic Byway runs right through it.

Outdoor recreational activities are popular in town - canoeing and kayaking on the West and Middle
Branches of the Westfield River, hiking and cross-country skiing in the Blandford-Chester State Forest, and
hiking the Keystone Arch Trail to view the famous railroad arches. The hike to Sanderson Brook Falls in the
Chester-Blandford State Forest is a popular family weekend hike.

Annual events that take place in Chester include the MapleFest on Skyline Trail in March, a celebration
of our railroad heritage called Chester on Track in late May, the Blueberry Days of Summer at the Kelso
Homestead in early August, and the Littleville Fair, a traditional agricultural fair, also in early August.
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Lake View General Store

437 Wells Rd.
Becket, MA
623-2338

Breakfast
Lunch

Deli

Full Package

Becket Country Store

609 Main Street, Becket, MA 01238
flocated between Becket Town Hall and Post Office)

413-623-5500

Beer, Wine, Liquor, Deli
Pizza, Soft Serve & Groceries

CANTERBURY FARM

Landscape Construction * Bed and Breakfast Lodging #* Cross Country Skiing

| Antiques &
| Collectibles

Furniture
= RetroKitchen
42 W;shinsg;n - Civil War Books
|Route o
Becket, MA 01223 Smalls
413-623-2109

Canterbury Landscaping has constructed
and improved six landscape sites on
Jacob's Ladder Trail from Russell to Lee.
Our historic B and B has three delightfully
modern guest rooms, Visit the farm during
the summer and fall for special events and
garden walks. Enjoy winter fitness on 12
miles of groomed and tracked cross coun-
try ski trails. Winter is fun for the whole
Family with on-site lessons and rentals.

1986 Fred Snow Rd Becket, Ma 01223
413-623-0100
www.canterbury-farms.com
canterburyfarm@verizon.net
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Towns Along the Trail - Becket

By Steve Hamlin

The town of Becket was incorporated in 1765, named for the estate of
Admiral Lord Barrington, which was located in Shrivenham, in Berkshire,
England. According to the Bicentennial History of Becket, by Cathaline
Alford Archer and Mitchell Mulholland, “the economic and social hub
of the town was in the area now referred to as Becket Center, where the
picturesque Becket Center Church still stands overlooking the original
¢ town cemetery and the Minute Men’s parade and drilling ground. A second
center of activity was built up at the intersection of the Farmington River
and Becket Turnpikes in West Becket. Stores and a post office were set up
at this point, which was for a time a thriving business area.”

The building of the Western Railroad in 1840 brought about a huge
change. The railroad followed the West Branch of the Westfield River, a
route that brought it through North Becket some five miles north of the
center of the town. North Becket, which was a small, fairly insignificant

Becket Center Church community near the Washington town line before the coming of the
railroad, soon overshadowed the original center.

Ready access to remote markets, along with abundant waterpower stimulated the growth of
manufacturing in North Becket. The railroad station, and the passengers who used it, attracted innkeepers
and merchants to North Becket. Within a few years, North Becket was a thriving commercial center.

Over time, the development of North Becket as the commercial center of Becket had the opposite
impact on the other villages in town. While Becket Center remains the center of town government, its social
importance, along with that of West Becket is greatly reduced.

North Becket was home to basketry and silk mills into the 20®
century, when a disastrous flood wiped out much of the village and
ended those industries. On November 14, 1927, several days of heavy
rain brought flooding to most of the Northeast. In Becket, William
Ballon, the owner of a reservoir upstream of town, sat watch over the
crumbling dam in his car. As its failure became imminent, he drove
through town alerting the residents. Due to his warning, all were saved
except 60-year-old Mrs. Justine Carroll. Mills, houses and barns were
washed away in the flood.

Lumber and quarrying were the main industries in Becket
throughout much of its history. Like the other towns along Jacob’s
Ladder Trail, farming was also important, particularly dairying.

The former Becket Quarry, which supplied granite to Chester via
the Becket & Chester Railroad, is now preserved by the Becket Land
Trust as recreational land. Stone cutting continues near Becket, with e
truckloads of granite carried through Bonnie Rigg Corners daily from Beckat ATis Centire
the Chester Granite Co., just over the line on Algerie Road in Otis.

Today, Becket is known as an artists’ community. Jacob’s Pillow Dance Festival and the Becket Arts
Center are the most visible examples of the arts, but there are also many artists working in home studios.

With its many lakes and ponds, Becket is also known as a vacation community. The town’s population
swells considerably each summer as people return to the summer camps and lake-front second homes that
make up a large part of the town.
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THIE LERE LAND TRIUUST

HENRY’S ELECTRIC, INC.

252 Main St. Lee, MA 01238

Ph: 413-243-0690 Fax: 413-243-4609
www.henryselectricine.com
ELECTRICAL CONTRACTING
Residential, Commercial & Service

HOME APPLIANCES SALES & SERVICE
Most Major Brands
Viking SubZero Bosch Maytag Whirlpool KichenAid
Woll  Frigidaire  Miele  Fisher & Paykel
Electrolux  Capital  Vent-A Hood  Liebherr
TV Sales & Installation
Sony, Samsung, Panasonic, LG

A land use coalition
Working o preserve Lee's nalural heritage thronghk responsible land management

PO, Box 702, Lee, MA 012338

HUNTER & GRAZIANO, P.C. i _
Pastrics - Cakes - Bread
Attorneys at Law y \ Lunch - Coffee

Don C. Hunter | Espresso
John W. Graziano ;

Ten Park Place
P.O. Box 337
Lee, Massachusetis 01236
Tel 413 243-0789
Fax 413 243-0213
www.berkshirelawyers.com

L-zu'r]gflrfslluf is 'I.I'ﬂll.lr serafch!

56 Main Street Lee, MA 413-243-2806
www.cakewalkba kery.com

General practice of law concentrating in Real Estate,
Business and Corporate law, zoning, estate administration
and long term care planning, and personal injury law.

Garhartt Woolrich + Dansko + Levi's
Mulberribush - crocs + Hi-Tec - Clarks « Merrell
Red Wing « Chippewa + Wigwam « Smartwool

Ben’s

68 Main Street - Lee - [413} 243-0242

L.LuncH AND DINNER

Steaks - Chops - Seafood - Burgers - Salads
FULLY RESTORED RAILROAD STATION

Railroad Street - Lee
Restiurant 413-243-2082

est. 1981 www.SullivanStationRestaurant.com
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Y Towns Along the Trail - Lee

v "« M By DeeDee Fraser

Lee is the largest and western-most of the Jacob’s Ladder Trail
communities. It has historically been known as a mill town, but now
enjoys a balanced economy of retail, services, tourism and agriculture.
A recent comprehensive downtown revitalization program, the
construction of a 60 store outlet complex at the Massachusetts Turnpike
entrance, and two business parks on Route 102 combined with existing
industry and farming to expand the economic base of Lee.

When the town was first settled in 1760 by transplants from Cape
Cod, it was known as Dodgetown, a name that was short-lived. In
1777, Dodgetown was incorporated as the town of Lee. The town was
given the name to honor General Charles Lee, George Washington’s
second in command during the first half of the American Revolution.

The ample water power of the Housatonic River supported some
textile manufacturing in Lee during the 19th century, but it was paper
that built the town. The first paper mill opened in 1806. By 1857 there
were 25 paper mills in Lee. In the 1860s and 70s, Lee’s Smith Paper
Company was the largest paper producer in the world, having developed
a process to produce paper solely from wood pulp, rather than the more
expensive cotton that had previously been the norm.

In 1852 another industry was launched with the -
discovery of Lee marble, reputed to be the hardest and
finest in the world. Within a few years, the quarrying
of marble grew to be an important business. Almost
half a million cubic feet of marble was quarried
and shipped in 1867 alone. The Capitol building
in Washington, D.C. is constructed of Lee marble.
Lee marble was also used in the construction of St.
Patrick’s Cathedral, Grant’s tomb, and the Empire
State Building.

Lee has a long history as an agricultural town,
stretching back to its earliest days as a colonial
village. Today’s farms produce dairy products, wool
and field-grazed cattle.

Lee has many well-preserved historic structures. The first house ever built in town, dated 1760, still
stands. A paper company and a lime kiln, along with many farmhouses and estates from Lee’s early history
still survive.

Lee’s downtown is listed on the National Register of Historic Places. Attractive, inviting, and eminently
walkable, Lee’s Main Street offers restaurants, gift shops and antique stores, hardware stores, barber shops
and beauty salons. At the southern end of Main St., the steeple of the First Congregational Church — the
tallest wood-frame steeple in New England — towers over the beautiful town square. It is a quintessential
American downtown.

Eirst Cblitgr'égational Churh
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FOUR MAIN STREET
— BAR AND GRILL —

4 MAIN ST. — HUNTINGTON
(On Corner of Rt. 20 next to the Post Office)

(413) 667-5300 — www.4mainst.com
Now booking parties of 10-50 people in our event room!

— Appetizers —
Omion Rings Served with
Ohr Signature BBQ) sauce
Fried Calamari Buttermilk soaked,
tossed in our signature fry served crispy
and tender.
Crab Cakes Premium jumbo and lump
crab made in true Maryland Style. Served
seared with rémoulade sauce.

— Salads —
Baby with the Blnes Quartered head

— Hilltown Tours —
Sandwiches
served with a Kosher picd:
, spearand ketle diips or ¥
:_1__." oreder offumed-cot staak fries
The Huntington
Sliced turkey breast
with traditional dressing and
cranberry mayonnaise in a wrap.
The Chester Crispy sliced Applewood
smoked bacon, vine ripened tomatoes and
crispy romaine lettuce on toast with mayo.

with cheddar cheese and tomato on
whole grain wheat bread.

;fﬁa‘%-i*'

¥

The Russell Warm tuna salad grilled 3

— Hilltown Clubs —
”ulrllf'urg- 'll.:.'.r{'al‘r - Chicken - or Roast Berf

Crisp romaine lettuce, vine ripened tomato,
4 strips of Applewood bacon and generous
helping of mayo between three slices of
whale grain or seeded rye bread served
with golden crinkle fries and a pickle spear.

— Comforts & More —
:  Country Fried Steak
Battered and fried
MNew York strip
steak smothered
in traditional white
SAUSIZE Gravy,
Roasted Turkey Dinner Turkey breast
marinated with fresh sage, white wine
and citrus fruits seared & slow roasted to
perfection. Topped with gravy and served
with apple cranberry dressing and our own
cranberry sauce.
Chef Selected Hand Cut Aged Steaks
Served Blackened or smothered with
mushrooms and onions. Gorgonzola or
Honey Bourbon Glaze.,

Baby Back Ribs 2 [b. marinated in our
own dry rub slowly steamed
with beer to tender
perfection. Finished
with Guinness
4 / BBQ) sance,
e

Cedar Plank Roasted Salmon
Plump salmon filet lightly
seasoned and roasted

on a cedar plank.

New York

Strip Steak

Rib Eyes

Filet Mignon

Cider Brined Boneless Cut Pork Chops

— Weekend Breakfast —
on Main Street
Eggs Benedict Split toasted english
muffin with Matural Canadian Bacon,
poached eggs and Hollandaise sauce.

Hash and Eggs Our own hash with
two eggs any style and toast.
Morning Quesadilla

Bacon, scrambled eggs . 4
and cheese with green
onions and diced
tomatoes in a crispy
grilled wrap served
with salsa and sour cream,

‘..

This is just a sampling
of our menu... stop in
for more great eats!

' Try Our New Xrated Mixed Drinks | si'/r _

N Xrated Screwdriver - Xrated Blood Orange Martini — Strawberry Kiss Martini

' Monkey Business Martini — Strawberry Margarita

\‘ — Growing Selection of Wines Available —
_‘ ‘ \ Arsenal of Beer on Tap — Serving Breakfast on Weekends
Live Entertainment Every Month Call for Schedule

e
—
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What i1s Jacob’s Ladder?

By Steve Hamlin

Jacob’s Ladder was a section of the Becket Turnpike that was built at the beginning of the nineteenth
century. Ironically, the original Jacob’s Ladder was discontinued with the building of the new state highway
that was named in honor of it.

It was an extremely steep road whether the
traveler was approaching from the east or the west.
It climbed in a nearly straight line over the summit
of Becket Mountain (AKA Morey Hill) from a
point very near the end of what is now Gentian
Hollow Road, then descended to approximately
opposite the end of the road into what is today
called Sherwood Greens on the west side of the
summit.

In her book, Growing Up on Jacob’s Ladder,
Shirley Phelps Bruso described the road:

- !
e

“I-.I :... : = A \:\-.'Eﬁ l‘.l " f
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“It was said that the dirt road looked like a
ladder as there were rows of dirt going across the
road to stop the rain from washing it out and on
the sides of the road were clearings for horses and

oxen to rest. Hence the name Jacobs Ladder.”

According to a Berkshire Gleaner article from
September 21, 1910, it was Cortlandt Field Bishop Long B _
who popularized the name Jacob’s Ladder, having heard the name applied to the road by a local resident.

On the east side of the summit, the road climbed at a grade of 17 percent or more through soil that
turned to sticky mud at the slightest provocation. On the west, the grade was 22 percent. By contrast, the
worst roads around today — Becket Road in Lee, Round Hill Road in Chester, or Dickinson Hill in Russell,
for example — are more on the order of 15 percent at their worst.

The ditches that paralleled the narrow road on either side added to the considerable challenge that the
steepness of the west side presented. Many an early traveler became much more acquainted with those
ditches than they ever intended to, courtesy of an unfortunately placed rock or an over-application of the
brakes that caused a skid.

In July, 1906, the Boston Globe reported on a Col. and Mrs. Pfaff who, along with their traveling
companions, were thrown from their car while descending the west side of Jacob’s Ladder, “when their
touring car struck a rock in the highway and turned the machine into an embankment.”

It was much more common to get stuck in the mud of the eastern approach, though.

In October, 1903, the New York Times reported that Cortlandt Field Bishop of New York and Lenox,
“who has been the leader in the investigation of Jacob’s Ladder, ... was caught in the quagmire last evening
while returning from Ambherst...” in “a soft portion of steep highway on Becket Mountain, where it was
alleged that a trap was set for automobiles by clay placed on the highway...” Bishop was already at work
trying to get a new road built to replace Jacob’s Ladder, having raised $600 towards the effort according to
the article.

A Boston Globe article from November 1904 reported that the hill had become known as “Three-Dollar
Hill” among motorists, the typical fee charged by the local farmers to have a car hauled out of the mud by a
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team of horses or yoke of oxen. The article goes on to state that “As many as four heavy cars have
become mired in the clay deposit simultaneously.” Hauling wealthy, stranded motorists out of the mud must
have been far more lucrative than farming.

Jacob’s Ladder was known far and wide as a hazard to motorists. In 1904, the national magazine The
Horseless Age published a notice that the Automobile Club of America proposed “to post signs in Blandford
and Becket, Mass., warning automobilists against taking the “Jacob’s Ladder” route (via Becket’s Hill) from
Springfield to the Berkshires and to go instead by way of Becket Station and East Otis.”

At least as early as 1904, there were plans for a better road over the Berkshires to connect Springfield
and the Connecticut River valley with
Pittsfield and beyond, but the preferred
route was far from certain. The 1904
Globe article listed the choices:

“There are four routes. One is via
Northampton and Cummington, where
an altitude of 2045 feet is reached.

The way is circuitous and dangerous.
Another is from Huntington on the
Westfield river, over Peru hill, a distance
of 55 miles, and a climb of 2080 feet
above the sea. A third takes in the
S 3 ; : S - famous “Jacob’s ladder.” The fourth and
e DNt IS - ™ | approved route of the Automobile club

: of America is through Russell on the
Westfield river to Blanford, Otis and East Lee. This run is of 54 miles between Springfield and Pittsfield over
an elevation of 1840 feet.”

“The most sought and probably the most difficult ascent for an automobile over a through county road in
Massachusetts today is the climb from the Westfield river to the top of “Jacob’s ladder.” The height is 1810
feet from sea level.”

In December of 1904, The Horseless Age reported that “The Selectmen of Becket, Mass. have agreed
to permit Cortland F. Bishop to expend the money he has raised by private subscription for repairs to
Jacob’s Ladder, the road over Becket Mountain, which for some time has been practically impassable to
automobiles.”

By 1908, the options had been narrowed down to just two. Either one would follow the current
route along Walker Brook to Bonnie Rigg Corners. There, the choices became either northwest through
Washington, Hinsdale and Dalton, or due west around Jacob’s Ladder via a cutoff to Lee.

The hoteliers of Pittsfield, and particularly Dalton, favored the more northerly route, but Lenox, Lee and
Stockbridge argued for an improved route over Becket Mountain, mostly along the same Becket Turnpike
that Jacob’s Ladder was a part of. In January, 1910, the Boston Globe reported that opponents to the Jacob’s
Ladder cutoff predicted that it would cost $200,000 to build a road around the “tourist’s terror.”

State engineers dismissed that prediction and the road we know was built at a cost of less than half of
the opponents’ prediction. The “tourist’s terror” was tamed, with the precipitous grades reduced to less than 7
percent — a grade that cars of the period could conquer, reportedly without down-shifting.

The Morey Hill cutoff was completed and opened to motorists around the end of 1909. The rest of the
new road into Lee was finished in 1910. Today, the original Jacob’s Ladder, the stretch of road that struck
fear in the hearts of early motorists, has been reclaimed by the forest. Having vanquished the beast, its
conquerors memorialized the road by naming its replacement in its honor.
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A Brief History of Jacob’s Ladder Trail

By Steve Hamlin

On a September day in 1910, a crowd of
people, reported to be 800, 2500 or 4000 by various
sources, congregated on the summit of Morey Hill to
celebrate a momentous advance in transportation —
the completion of the first auto road over a mountain
range. It was the dawn of the age of the automobile
— the crossroads of the supremacy of horse-drawn and
rail travel with the infancy of the trolley, motorcar,
and airplane.

In an article describing the celebration in the
Valley Gleaner, a newspaper in Lee, the writer asked
himself how an “event held on a mountain top a dozen
miles from anywhere, only accessible by a single highway, in a rainy day, no shelter within several miles,
with no attraction of a popular nature, should prove to be a real success”, then provided the following answer:

15, SACUSS WELL. JACOES LADDIS ROADWAY, 6ASS

“It is to be found in the supreme significance of the event, in the major importance of the idea to be
celebrated. The breaking down the natural barrier between the east and the west, the building of a highway
connecting the Connecticut and Housatonic river valleys, Springfield with Berkshire, and in the larger sense
the cities of Boston and Albany, the creation of an interstate route, the unifying of the state by surmounting
physical obstacles, all this is meant by the completion of this project. It is not alone in the material sense
either, for bands of communication create bonds of human fellowship and the people of the state will
henceforth know each other better because Jacob's Ladder has been conquered.”

Like with the railroad seventy years earlier, the Berkshire hills were the proving ground on which the
efficacy of a new mode of travel was tested against gravity. Future mountain crossings would be grander and
would carry travelers to loftier heights, but it was on these hills that the first victory was won — the victory
against the skeptics.

In 1912, a trans-continental route was proposed by a group of small town businessmen in South Dakota.
Their proposal became the Yellowstone Trail, which spanned the country from Plymouth, Massachusetts to
Seattle, Washington. The Jacob’s Ladder Trail was adopted as part of that road system. So, within a couple
of years of its opening, the Jacob’s Ladder Trail was part of another “first” - the first auto route across the
Northern Tier of the US.

The 1920’s were probably the heyday of
Jacob’s Ladder Trail tourism. Henry Ford had
made the automobile accessible to the middle-
class and they had embraced auto travel as an
inexpensive form of recreation. Tourist inns and
gift shops sprung up at the Morey Hill summit,
Jacob’s Well, Bonnie Rigg Corners, and elsewhere
along the Trail.

The 1930’s brought major changes to the
road. Miles of it were moved and straightened,
and bridges were replaced as projects of the
Depression-era Works Progress Administration
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(WPA). Meanwhile, another “New Deal” program, the Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) was creating
many of the recreational assets we enjoy along the Trail today. As part of that program, both the Chester-
Blandford and October Mountain State Forests were shaped. The existing forests on the state-owned lands
were thinned, pruned and replanted, and fire- and pest-control measures were implemented. The tracts were
also improved with roads, rustic shelters, and picnic areas

By the post-World War 11 years, Jacob’s
Ladder Trail was a busy highway. It was the main
east-west truck route between Boston and the states
to the west. The mill-towns along the Trail were at
the height of their productivity as paper, abrasives,
quarried stone, and woolen products were churned
out up and down the Westfield River and in Lee.

The Interstate Highway program initiated by
the Dwight Eisenhower administration brought
construction of a new road across Massachusetts.

At least as early as 1948, a route had been
contemplated to alleviate some the congestion along
the now nearly half-century-old network of state
roads, particularly in Boston. The Federal program gave the state needed financial assistance. Construction
began on the Massachusetts Turnpike in 1955. The new four-lane road opened from the New York state line
to Boston on May 15, 1957.

The effect on traffic along Jacob’s
= Ladder Trail was immediate and drastic.
Sk Suddenly all through-traffic was siphoned
off by the Turnpike, while the lack of
an exit for the roughly 30-mile stretch
from Lee to Westfield relegated the older
road to local traffic. With the resulting
isolation, the mills in the towns along the
Trail began to falter.

The first to fail was the woolen mill
in Huntington. The woolen mill had been
a leading producer of blankets, but it

: e 1 suffered from the drop in demand from the
zmage o il tesy of Imag i seeart.) military in the years after WWII. When
== the mill burned to the ground in the 1960’s

the owners decided not to rebuild.

The paper mills began to fail or move away. Again, the Huntington mill was the first to go. Among the
Russell mills, the Westfield Paper Company disappeared first. The venerable Strathmore Paper Company was
bought out by International Paper and the operation was moved to Ohio in the 1990’s. Texon Paper Company
continues to hold on in the Crescent Mills hamlet of Russell.

The Cortland Abrasives Company plant in Chester burned spectacularly in the 1980’s, bringing an
end to that business. A small vestige of the once-thriving abrasives industry continues to operate out of a
building on Middlefield Street. The Chester Granite Company — actually located in Otis — continues to do
a good business providing granite curbstones, among other granite products. However, any connection to
Chester, other than the name, is lost - the Becket & Chester Railroad that once delivered quarried stone to the
stonecutting facilities and freight trains in Chester is long gone, as are the cutting sheds and freight sidings.
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These and many other remnants of Chester’s industrial past lie decaying in the woods with maturing

trees growing up around and through them.

o - The towns along most of the length of the

Trail are now predominantly bedroom communities

for the cities of Westfield, Pittsfield, Northampton,

and Springfield. Becket has also attracted a large

population of second-home owners. While the decline

of industry that resulted from the creation of the

Turnpike has created some fiscal challenges, it has

also created some benefits. The lack of development

_ pressure has almost accidentally preserved much of the

AR '_ — X area. While the rest of the state has seen an explosion

: — in population and development, the Jacob’s Ladder
Jacob’s Ladder T_ra_ilBeQ}(Gt Trail corridor has almost regressed - a reminder of

Massachusetts in a simpler time.

In 1991, the federal government passed the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA),
which provided funding for many transportation-related projects. One of the programs spawned by ISTEA
was the Scenic Byways Program — a national grass-roots collaborative effort established to help recognize,
preserve and enhance selected roads throughout the United States. Locally, the Pioneer Valley Planning
Commission (PVPC) and the Berkshire Regional Planning Commlss10n (BRPC) Jomed forces to re- estabhsh
the Jacob’s Ladder Trail as a scenic byway. . Bl W inpt

The name Jacob’s Ladder Trail had faded into
insignificance during the road’s years of decline. The
road was still remembered by that name by many of
the “old-timers” of the area, but younger residents were
unaware or disinterested in the road’s history, and often
confused by its quaint moniker.

Under the leadership of PVPC and BRPC, and
with the partnership of MassHighway (now MassDOT)
— the modern-day Massachusetts Highway Commission
— the Jacob’s Ladder Scenic Byway Advisory Board Jacob’s Ladder Trail, Russell
(JLT) was formed in 1992. Since then, JLT has
successfully applied for grants of hundreds of thousands of dollars to enhance, preserve, and interpret the
qualities that make the Jacob’s Ladder Trail and the towns along its length special.

The members of the JLT advisory board include citizen representatives of the five towns and the
business community, representatives of the two RPAs — PVPC and BRPC — and a liaison from MassHighway.
Since the inception of the modern incarnation of Jacob’s Ladder Trail, four more scenic byways have been
recognized in Western Massachusetts: the Connecticut River Byway, the Mount Greylock Scenic Byway, the
Mohawk Trail Scenic Byway, and the Rt. 112 Scenic Byway.

The advisory boards of the various scenic byways, through our RPA representatives, have formed a
loose collaboration in the belief that we can be more successful as allies than as competitors. The roadways
we have adopted encompass the entire western third of the state and, with the exception of gaps between
Lenox and Lanesborough, and Westfield and South Hadley form a continuous network of connected scenic
byways.

In celebration of the centennial of Jacob’s Ladder Trail, and in tribute to its dedication 100 years ago,
we are placing a stone monument at the site of the cairn. Fittingly, the stone comes from the Chester Granite
Company, who generously donated it.

W S
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The Summit
Excerpted from Growing Up on Jacob’s Ladder, by Shirley Phelps Bruso

Reprinted by permission

In 1925, soon after Pa, my grandfather, went to the
Summit, Jacobs Ladder, he, Uncle Harry and carpenters
built an observation tower out of pine logs. The tower stood
about fifty feet high. Pa strung lights around the top and
around the first landing. I heard a story that Sonny, when
about three, had to be rescued from the first landing as
he sat up there with his legs dangling down. People paid
10¢ to walk up the tower but sometimes Jack, our good-
natured hound dog, would lay on the landing and people
were afraid to come down. A big telescope, which swiveled
for the convenience of viewers, rested on the top landing.
Sometimes walking up the tower, I’d be scared going up the last two flights of stairs.

Right next to the tower and on the corner of the highway and the dirt road, Pa built a gas station and
sold Socony gas and oil. Everyone, including the women, turned the handles on the gas pumps to pump gas.
Sonny used to help pour water in the radiators and he collected money from the tower.

The rock pile was in front of the gas station until my grandfather moved it across the street directly
opposite the store. He cemented the rocks together and behind
the rock pile he put up a flagpole. The flag always flew at the
Top 0’ Jacobs Ladder.

...Pa built the store called Summit House with a porch
around three sides upstairs and two sides on the bottom.
There were about ten bedrooms. Before 1930, he built an gk g g
addition to the store which contained a good-sized kitchen and - @l $ L’qu’ﬁ_
dining room. The stairs led upstairs from the dining room to a ' T —
bathroom and three bedrooms.

...The cottages were built east of the store—one “Big
Cottage” and two “Little Cottages” as they were called. About
1930, “B.B. Cottage” and the “Last Cottage” were built west of the dirt road. During the summer we girls
lived in the “Last Cottage” along with Marion, Fred, and Margaret. Up the dirt road my father and Fred built
“Little Cottage” in 1940. Marion and Fred lived there for awhile.

Behind the “Big Cottage” stood the icehouse in which the men put the tons of ice they cut in the winter
at Greenwater Pond. Beyond the icehouse was the pig pen.

Opposite the icehouse was the shop. That’s where the two
generators were—the big generator and the little one. I remember
my father always trying to start them. He spent much time on his
back trying to repair them. His forge sat there and in the back of
_ the building was the sawmill.

Across the street from the store and in the field was a
gondola for picnickers to use and picnic tables along the dirt
| road. The gondola and the chicken house were taken down about
1939, but the other buildings were still standing at the Summit,
Top 0’ Jacobs Ladder in 1946 when my parents sold the store.
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To order a copy of Growing Up on Jacob's Ladder Trail, visit http://homepages.rootsweb.ancestry.com/~shirleyb/jacobsladder/
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The Good Roads Movement & Jacob s Ladder Trail

By Steve Hamlin

The development of the bicycle and its popularity as a mode
of transportation in the 1870s brought to light the inadequacy
of the road system in the U.S. Roads were fine in towns and
villages where they received regular maintenance. In between,
though, maintenance was left to those who lived along the roads.
Consequently, especially in rural areas where residents were
sparse, maintenance was irregular and roads were often barely
passable.

In the 1880s, a group of bicyclists formed the League of
American Wheelmen (LAW), in large part to advocate for an
improved system of roads. This advocacy became the Good
Roads Movement, which spread across the country. The cause
was taken up in the name of improved and less expensive mail . -
delivery and better access for farmers to urban markets, but it L e ﬂﬂ? T
continued to be spearheaded by the LAW. -

In 1892, in response to the demand for better roads, the Massachusetts legislature passed a bill creating
the Massachusetts Highway Commission (MHC), the first such commission in the nation. Prior to this
action, other than mandating or authorizing the building of early turnpikes, roads had been left entirely to
the counties and local communities. The MHC represented the first direct state-level involvement in road
construction or maintenance in the nation.
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By the turn of the century, automobiles
were gaining popularity. Motorists and
bicyclists became allies in the cause of improved
roads. Within a few years, though, the number
and influence of motorists eclipsed that of
bicyclists, and the Good Roads Movement
became theirs, the role of the LAW largely
forgotten.

In the last quarter of the nineteenth
century, bicycles were on the cutting edge of
. technology. Victorian-era techies — mostly the
well-to-do — embraced them in the same way
people of today have embraced the technology
of our own era. There is no evidence that
Cortlandt Bishop was a bicycle enthusiast, but it seems likely that he was in the years before the automobile.
In any event, he adopted the principals of the Good Roads Movement in his pursuit of an improved road over
the mountains.

On the centennial anniversary of Jacob’s Ladder Trail, it’s good to remember that it was bicyclists, not
motorists, who began the movement that made this road possible.

Early morniné" elist - Great River Ride
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photo by Jeff Penn
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real river stone walls, bar and tables
Have a drink and enjoy music, pizza and bar appetizers.
A truly unique experience!
* Banguets » Weddings » Showers
» Anniversaries * Birthdays » Family Gatherings

The Ripids - “The" Pl To Gathen!

200 Worthington Road (Route 112), Huntington
413-667-3300




View northwest from Observation Hill
photo by Jeff Penn

Greénwatr,()nd, léec'kéf :

#H-md.cntlﬁed paddlels Westﬁeld River Races™
‘photo by Linda Hamlin -

Jacob’s Pillow, Becket

Functional Art

Uliermel lnsulated
Windew Treatments

Save Money
- Beautify Your Home
Save Energy

—— e ———
7 Prospect Street
Chester, MA 01011
(413) 354-2320

www.ArtwithanRvalue.com

MURRAY'S LANDSCAPING & EXCAVATION
FREE ESTIMATES, FAMILY OWNED

JOHN E MURRAY SR
554 MAIN ST, BECKET, MASS 01223

JMURRAY554@HOTMAIL.COM
413-822-0787
413-623-8820

SEPTICS INSTALLED, HOUSE SITES
PERKS, DRIVEWAYS, POMERWASHING
PLOWING, RES'COMMERCLAL
MOWING, CARFENTRY,CONCRETE
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Mountain Laurel Designs

*Hamlin

[nda & Stew

[Huntingron. MAOI

Tinbl R
brics, Uphiolstery

* Home of Laurel's Fancy jewelry designs
= Landscape, nature, arl & wedding photography

& | Huntingron MA 01050

FEED » PET SUPPLIES » CLOTHING = COAL = WOOD PELLETS
WILD & CAGED BIRDSEED » POOL SUPPLIES » MOTOR OILS
FENCING = LAWN & GARDEN SUPPLIES « FERTILIZER

GATEWAY FARM & PET
Poulindrain”  Comhiartt g

M-F 8am-5pm « Sar Sam-4pm Tara Grenier
1.413.667.2279 Paul Grenier

59 Russell Road

Darryl S. Fisk 413-667-3426
FProprietor
Moltenbrey’s Market
Meats » Produce *» Groceries
Mon. thru Fri.
8:00 am - 6:00 PMm
44 Worthington Road Saturday
Huntington, MA 01050 8:00 am - 5:00 pm

Country
Journal

ogts A Turley Publication Donna Aronowitz

Advertising Account
Representative

Country Journal Office
Tel 413-667-3211
Fax 413-667-3011
countryjournal@turley.com
www. turley.com

Devoled to the Needs of the Hilltowns

Mouth-watering breakfast platters, thoughtfully prepared
Two-fisted burgers e Budget-friendly family dinners
Homemade pies - so tasty they’'re worth breaking in for

Muffins - so scrumptious they’re worth stealing

Limited delivery available e

BYOB

22 East Main St. ¢ Huntington, MA 01050 e (413) 667-3080
Hours: Monday-Friday 6:00 am to 2 pm and 4:30 pm to 7:30 pm
Saturday 6:00 am to 1:30 pm e Sunday 7:00 am to 1:00 pm
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- Aleng the Westfield Rivet ... -
photo by Linda Hamlin :

with premum grade
Heating oil Road Diesel
Kerosene Dyed Diesel

Rt. 20, Chester 354-2292




Some of
the greatest
events happen
right in our
own backyard.

o o 1301
e | Plaiening
continues

s | for new

Al school

‘Where did & _'nu.:;g ;? | Tensions Iigh al
}Jli"hert:*ldld !h?’ ml __g_r_ ~  selecthoard meeting
R B e S

R Volunteers answer call -‘f-rhalml bu .
M for playgrownd project I'““:'“__ EIEEER R

o I
dget vode may have sef precedent |

Every week you’ll find those
events published in
The Country Journal.

A TURLEY PUBLICATION
www.turley.com
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10

years!

Congratulations
to Jacob’s Ladder Trail

I3

Florence Savings Bank

Partners in Our Hometown
413-586-1300 or 800-644-8261

An Bqual Housing Lender £

Member FRIC AMember [THF

florencesavings.com



JACOB'S
/(j/PILLOW

DANCE

Jacob’s Pillow Dance
is proud to be part of Jacob’s Ladder Trail.

Festival « School « Archives « Community Programs
358 George Carter Rd, Becket, MA - 413.243.9919 - jacobspillow.org




Jacob’s Ladder Trail Advisory Boatd, January 20, 2004

Thank JYou to all the members, former or current, of the
Jacob’s Ladder Scenic Byway Advisory Board:

Paul Boudreau, BRPC
Natalie Bozarth, PVPC
William Crane, Becket

Linda Cysz, Lee

Rachel Dargie, District #1 MHD
Ann Deely, Lee

Sheila Finn, BRPC

Dee Dee Fraser, Lee

Peter Frieri, District #1 MHD
Lauren Gaherty, BRPC

John Garvey, Chester

Naomi Gordon, Lee

Steve Hamlin, Huntington
Linda Hamlin, JLBA

Mary Hull, Russell

Erica Johnson, PVPC

Karen Karlberg, Becket
Ruth Kennedy, Russell
Michelle Labbe, JLBA

Ed Lausier, District #1 MHD
Carol Marino, Lee

David Marsh, Becket
Newman Marsh, Chester
Howard Mason, Russell
Richard Masse, District #1 MHD
Sue Maxwell, Russell

Jim Mazik, PVPC

Jim McGrath, BRPC

Ann Merritt, Russell
Catherine Moran, Russell

Charlie Najimy, District #1 MHD
Zoe Neaderland, BRPC

Grace Oppenheimer, Chester
Robert Oppenheimer, Chester
Tony Palazzo, Russell

Bonnie Parsons, PVPC

Jeff Penn, Huntington

Fay Piergiovanni, Chester

Bill Robinson, Becket

John Schmid, BRPC

Ann Spadafora, Becket

Barbara Stuhlmann, Becket

Tom Thornton, JLBA

Charlie Wetzel, District #1 MHD
Carolyn Young, Lee

Funding for the Centennial Celebration of the Jacob’s Ladder Trail generously provided by
our sponsors and the Cultural Councils of Becket, Chester, Huntington, Lee, and Russell
Please support our generous advertisers




